
BOROUGH OF WIND GAP

BOROUGH OF WIND GAP
29 MECHANIC STREET
WIND GAP, PA  18091

610-863-7288
 

 
The Council meeting of the Borough of Wind Gap on Monday, March 3, 2003 was called to order at 7:30 p.
m. by Council President Winton Male, Jr., at which time he reminded those present that the meeting was 
being recorded.  In attendance were Council members: Lewis Paulhamus, Sandra Lockard, Mitchell D. 
Mogilski, Sr., William Pysher, and Kerry Gassler.  Also in attendance were Mayor Kenneth George, Alyssa 
Lopiano-Reilly from Borough Solicitor Len Zito’s office, Borough Engineer, Ron Madison, and Secretary/
Treasurer Louise Firestone. 
 
Approval of Minutes -
 
            On motion by Bill Pysher to approve the minutes of the February 3, 2003 meeting and seconded 
by Kerry Gassler.  Roll call vote taken.  Motion carried unanimously.
            
Peter Stinson arrived at 7:33 p.m.
 
On motion by Mitchell D. Mogilski, Sr. to approve the minutes of the February 8, 2003 special meeting 
and seconded by Sandra Lockard.  Roll call vote taken.  In favor:  S. Lockard, W. Male, M. Mogilski, B. 
Pysher.  Abstained:  K. Gassler, L. Paulhamus, P. Stinson.  Motion carried with a vote of 4-0-3.
 
Approval of Expenditures - 
 
On motion by Bill Pysher to approve the expenses in the amount of $37,519.66 and seconded by Mitchell 
D. Mogilski, Sr.  Roll call vote taken.  Motion carried unanimously.
            
Public Comment
 
1.         Jim Preston representing Posh Properties asked Council if he could discuss the urgency to act on 
the petition for re-zoning in order to do this project.  He understands that it is up to the discretion of 
Council.  Winton asked if they are aware of where Council is with this issue?  The Land Use Committee 
has recommended that the change be made with the revisions to the zoning ordinance.  Hopefully, 
Council will vote to advertise the changes to zoning ordinance tonight and then a public meeting will have 
to be held as soon as possible in April.
 
2.         Roger Bet reported that as of tonight, he has turned in $7,045.00 to the Borough for The Vogues 
Concert on March 15, 2003.  He stated that they still have tickets available and hope with all the 
advertising in the next two weeks more will be sold.
            Roger expressed concern about how the snow is plowed on Park Avenue and Lehigh Avenue.  
The snow has been plowed into the intersection creating an unsafe situation.  He asked if Chief Armitage 
could stop and request the snow be pushed away from the intersection.  Mitch requested that the Chief 
again stop and instruct them about where to plow the snow.
 
3.         Jim Preston stated that they have a land development plan before the Planning Commission.  
They understand they are proceeding at their own risk.  He asked if Council objects to them continuing to 

http://www.windgapborough.org/data/CouncilMinutes/2003/March0303.htm (1 of 5)7/26/2007 3:49:10 PM



BOROUGH OF WIND GAP

proceed or to prosecute that plan through the planning commission through zoning condition ultimately on 
rezoning for which no guarantees are provided?  Alyssa advised Council that there is no detriment to 
Council to allow that occur.  It can occur simultaneously conditioned on the rezoning.  They are looking for 
approval conditioned on the rezoning and would be null and void unless the rezoning went through.  
Approval by Council would trigger the plan to proceed.  Alyssa stated that it is up to the discretion of 
Council, but there would be no risk.  It is not necessary to have anything in writing.  They have no legal 
basis without the rezoning.  The public meeting and minutes would be sufficient.
            On motion by Peter Stinson that Council does not oppose the developer proceeding at the 
developer’s own risk before the Planning Commission or Zoning Hearing Board for conditional approvals 
on the subdivision plan that has been submitted to the Borough.  The conditional approval will be 
conditioned upon the rezoning and seconded by Kerry Gassler.  Roll call vote taken.  Motion carried 
unanimously.
 
4.         Rick Keenhold asked who would be voting on the comprehensive plan and zoning amendments.  
Four members already voted on the issue and the other three council member’s vote would not matter.  
He stated that a quorum was present for the Land Use Committee meeting.  Winton replied that it was a 
committee meeting not a Council meeting and only three Council members are on the committee, Bill, 
Peter, and Winton.  Sandra is a member as part of the Planning Commission.
            Rick asked Peter if he has talked to anyone about changing Eighth Street to IC (Industrial 
Commercial).  Peter stated that he has talked to people, but no one directly living on Eighth Street.  He 
said that zoning is not an intention to upset people’s lives.  He speaks with a number of people including 
those on the committee and some in his neighborhood.  Rick said that Eighth Street residents are not in  
favor of changing from residential to industrial commercial.  Winton stated that a meeting will be held to 
specifically discuss this topic and open debate will occur at that meeting.
 
5.         Sheldon Johnson asked whom he sues when he has water damage on Eighth Street to repair his 
property, Borough Council or the developer?  Winton replied that the development was not approved.
 
6.         Vickie Allen stated that the sewer work done on Alpha and the repair to the road has left a terrible 
rut.  She asked if the road could be repaired.  Kerry replied that he would contact the Sewer Authority and 
Beers, who did the construction, to have the road repaired.
 
7.         Peter Albanese asked if they public could have a copy of the proposed plan?  Winton replied that 
they would be available once Council approves them to be advertised.
 
8.         Citizen on Eighth Street complained that the road would be behind her house because it is all 
residential area.  Winton stated that the road would be north of the railroad bed and not directly on the old 
railroad bed.  She asked if she could be notified of all meetings to be held on this subject.  Winton replied 
that all meetings would be advertised in the paper.  Rick Keenhold asked if all residents within 200 feet 
would need to be specifically notified.  Ron Madison replied that since it is being proposed as a Borough 
wide change, individual notification is not required.  Rick asked why Mr. Zito stated that Seventh Street 
was not ordained properly because the adjourning property owners were not notified, isn’t this the same 
thing?  Winton replied that it would be properly advertised in the paper and in the Borough newsletter.  
Urban Research spent many hours in the Borough researching how the Borough should be zoned and 
they proposed the changes to the Land Use Committee.  The road would supposedly be the first two legs 
of the Slate Belt By-pass and someday go all the way to Portland.  One of the big benefits to Wind Gap 
would be getting the traffic out of the Borough.  The first leg is from Broadway to Route 512.  The second 
is from Broadway to Route 33, going through Plainfield and Bushkill coming out at Route 512 at the light.  

http://www.windgapborough.org/data/CouncilMinutes/2003/March0303.htm (2 of 5)7/26/2007 3:49:10 PM



BOROUGH OF WIND GAP

The Green Knights came up with $10,000 for the feasibility study.  Tax Increment Financing expert is 
doing the study and once that study is done it will be decided if further money should be invested. 
 
9.         Patricia Sutter asked what people are planning to donate their land on the west side of Route 33?  
Winton replied that Beers is one and Nolan Perin owns property.
 
10.        Sheldon Johnson asked Council to notify all residents within 200 feet of the rezoning.  Alyssa 
stated that the Borough Code and the requirements must be followed.  Council can increase the 
requirement level at their discretion.  Ron added that it would affect the entire Borough in one way or 
another and a specific mailing is not required.
 
Solicitor's Report
 
1.         Alyssa Lopiano-Reilly stated that she has no official report at this time.
 
Engineer's Report
 
            Ron Madison referenced his correspondence dated February 25, 2003.  The State Department of 
Environmental Protection is requiring that all municipalities must participate in the MS4 Individual 
Stormwater National Elimination Discharge Permit process.  The initial permit must be submitted by March 
10, 2003.  As requested, Hanover Engineering completed the documentation for waiver since the Borough 
has less than 10,000 inhabitants.  Ron stated that through further research the tributaries to the Bushkill 
Creek are classified as being high quality coldwater fish and migratory fisheries and all those are strikes 
against the Borough for being granted a waiver.  Further steps will have to be taken through the summer.  
The permit requires a $500.00 permit fee.  The goal of the DEP is to regulate every storm pipe discharge 
to the waterways of the Commonwealth.  On motion by Peter Stinson to authorize Ron Madison as 
Borough Engineer to sign on behalf of the Borough and cut a check for $500.00 and seconded by Bill 
Pysher.  Roll call vote taken.  Motion carried unanimously.
            Ron provided Council with a proposed schedule from Grace Industries for the park restroom 
construction.  He stated that they are hoping to get started by the end of March is weather permits.  Three 
large trees need to be removed from the area and he will be in contact with John Zucal to coordinate.
 
Old Business
 
1.            Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Amendments.  The Land Use Committee gave instruction to 
Tom Palmer to include the changes discussed at their meeting and distribute to Council for review and 
advertisement.  Winton stated that Council needs to authorize the advertising of this and establishing a 
public meeting.  Kerry asked why the five workshop meetings with Urban Research have not taken place 
to date.  He thinks now it is time for Council to sit with Urban Research and discuss this prior to having a 
public meeting.  Discussion that Council did not have sufficient time to review this as a whole.  Wind Gap 
Planning Commission and Lehigh Valley Planning Commission must be allotted thirty days to complete a 
review of the changes
            On motion by Lewis Paulhamus to table this to let all Council members discuss at the workshop 
meeting or another open meeting and seconded by Kerry Gassler.  Roll call vote taken.  In favor:  K. 
Gassler, M. Mogilski, L. Paulhamus, B. Pysher, P. Stinson.  Opposed:  S. Lockard, W. Male.
            Kerry suggested that Tom Palmer be invited to the workshop meeting.
 
2.         1997 Lumina Police Car.  The Borough received three bids on the Police Car.

http://www.windgapborough.org/data/CouncilMinutes/2003/March0303.htm (3 of 5)7/26/2007 3:49:10 PM



BOROUGH OF WIND GAP

            U.S. Properties Outlet, Trenton, NJ        $789.00
Ted Covington Sales, Oatesville, PA            $1,257.00
Grace Quality Used Cars                 $1,521.00
            On motion by Bill Pysher to accept the bid from Grace Quality Used Cars with a bid of $1,521.00 
and seconded by Peter Stinson.  Roll call vote taken.  Motion carried unanimously.     
 
3.         Hook Loader Bid Award.  Winton stated that the Borough only received one bid on the truck.  
Winton expressed his concern that the bid specifications were written making it difficult for other people to 
bid.  He stated that there were seven sets of specifications picked up and he contacted a few of them as to 
the reason they did not bid.  The reason seemed to be a problem with the aerial bucket body assembly for 
the truck.  The Mayor stated that he does not believe that it is a good idea to have Council members 
plowing the streets.  We need people outside of Council and not have the street chairman as the primary 
snow plow operators.  The Borough either needs to sub out the work or hire extra personnel.
            On motion by Lewis Paulhamus to accept the bid of $75,323.85 from Bergey’s Truck Center for 
the Hook Loader, Bucket truck and seconded by Mitchell D. Mogilski, Sr.  Discussion regarding the 
financing to pay for the truck from this year’s budget and then subsequent years instead of taking out a 
loan.  The street department currently has $36,000 set aside for this new truck.  It will be ordered, but 
delivery is not expected until some time in the fall, possibly September or October.  Financing to be 
discussed at a later date. Roll call vote taken.  Motion carried unanimously.
 
4.         Wind Gap Ambulance Lease.  Mitch reported that he spoke to John Molnar and John did not send 
the lease to the committee, doesn’t know what the mix up was.  When John Molnar called Mitch he stated 
that Joe Dell’alba had the original lease, where he was saying that he didn’t have that information because 
John said he received the lease from Joe.  Kerry stated that at the last Board of Trustee meeting the lease 
was discussed and they are planning to propose a plan to offer to Council on what the rent should be.  
Hopefully a meeting will be held in the next month or two to sit with the Council committee of Mitch, Lewis 
and Winton.  Kerry asked if he could participate in the meetings as a member of the Board of Trustees and 
a member of Council?  Alyssa stated that it would make the appearance of impropriety, but she would 
research further if Council wishes.
 
New Business
 
1.         Local Emergency Operation Plan.  Neil Stackhouse was not in attendance.  Karen Skorochod 
stated that the EMS Council is conducting an on-line survey to determine needs.  They are trying to train 
the most people in the shortest amount of time.  Training classes will be held and Joe Dell’alba will be 
notified.
 
2.         On motion by Lewis Paulhamus to advertise for the mowing of grass in the Park to be included in 
the Borough newsletter and seconded by Mitchell D. Mogilski, Sr.  Roll call vote taken.  Motion carried 
unanimously.
 
3.         Bill Pysher suggested setting the date for the public meeting and having it held at the Wind Gap 
Fire Hall to accommodate the residents of the Borough.  Suggestion to invite Tom Palmer to the March 18 
meeting and the public meeting.  Ron Madison explained that if Council discusses the subject at the 
March 18 meeting, it could be advertised for the public meeting to be held on Thursday, April 24, 2003.  
This would give the Wind Gap Planning Commission and the Lehigh Valley Planning Commission the 
required thirty days to review and give input.  Council can vote at the conclusion of the April 24 meeting if 
there are no changes or if the changes are minor in nature.  If Council wishes they could wait and vote on 

http://www.windgapborough.org/data/CouncilMinutes/2003/March0303.htm (4 of 5)7/26/2007 3:49:10 PM



BOROUGH OF WIND GAP

the matter at their May 5, 2003 meeting or if major revisions are necessary then the process would have to 
start all over again.  Alyssa suggested having a stenographer attend the meeting since this will include 
substantial changes to the Borough ordinances.  The draft form of the comprehensive plan and the zoning 
amendments will not be available to the public until Council has taken formal action on the matter, at 
which time, copies will be available at the Borough office.
            On motion by Mitchell D. Mogilski, Sr. to hold a public meeting on April 24, 2003 at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Wind Gap Fire Hall conditioned upon Council advertising the meeting after the March 18, 2003 Council 
meeting and seconded by Sandra Lockard.  Roll call vote taken.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. Zito and Mr. Palmer to be notified of the meetings.
 
Executive Session.   Council adjourned to Executive Session at 9:18 p.m. to discuss outstanding 
litigation.  Council reconvened at 9:22 p.m.  Council will hold a special Executive Session at Mr. Zito’s 
office on Tuesday, March 11, 2003 to discuss the Wind Gap Municipal Authority litigation.  Paul Levits 
asked if Council could be more specific.  Alyssa reminded Paul that it is pending litigation and involves 
attorney client privilege.
 
 
On motion by Peter Stinson to adjourn the meeting of March 3, 2003 and seconded by Kerry Gassler.  
Meeting adjourned at 9:25 p.m.
 
                                                                                                                                                                        
                                                            __________________________________
                                                                                                Louise Firestone
                                                                                                Borough Secretary
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                

http://www.windgapborough.org/data/CouncilMinutes/2003/March0303.htm (5 of 5)7/26/2007 3:49:10 PM


	windgapborough.org
	BOROUGH OF WIND GAP


